

**NEW MILFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION**  
**New Milford Public Schools**  
**25 Sunny Valley Road, Suite A**  
**New Milford, Connecticut 06776**

RECEIVED  
TOWN CLERK *map*

2025 MAR 28 P 3:38

NEW MILFORD, CT

**POLICY SUB-COMMITTEE**  
**MEETING NOTICE**

**DATE: April 1, 2025**  
**TIME: 6:30 P.M.**  
**PLACE: Sarah Noble Intermediate School – Library Media Center**

**AGENDA**

**New Milford Public Schools Mission Statement**

The mission of the New Milford Public Schools, a collaborative partnership of students, educators, family, and community is to prepare each and every student to compete and excel in an ever-changing world, embrace challenges with vigor, respect and appreciate the worth of every human being, and contribute to society by providing effective instruction and dynamic curriculum, offering a wide range of valuable experiences, and inspiring students to pursue their dreams and aspirations.

**1. Call to Order**

**2. Public Comment**

An individual may address the Board concerning any item on the agenda for the meeting subject to the following provisions:

- A. A three-minute time limit may be allocated to each speaker with a maximum of twenty minutes being set aside per meeting. The Board may, by a majority vote, cancel or adjust these time limits.
- B. If a member of the public comments about the performance of an employee or a Board member, whether positive, negative, or neutral, and whether named or not, the Board shall not respond to such comments unless the topic is an explicit item on the agenda and the employee or the Board member has been provided with the requisite notice and due process required by law. Similarly, in accordance with federal law pertaining to student confidentiality, the Board shall not respond to or otherwise discuss any comments that might be made pertaining to students.

**3. Discussion and Possible Action**

A. Policy Revisions for First Read

1. 1111 School Security and Safety and Comparison Document
2. 1250 Visitors and Observations in Schools and Comparison Document

B. New Policy for First Read

1. 1340 Naming or Renaming School Buildings, Components of School Buildings and/or School Grounds

C. Policy Revisions Recommended for Second Review

1. 4118.112 Policy Regarding Employees and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
2. 4112.5 Employment and Student Teacher Background Checks  
4212.5

#### D. Items of Information

1. 4118.112      Policy Regarding Employees and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
2. 1111 R        Administrative Regulations Regarding School Security and Safety
3. 1250 R        Administrative Regulations Regarding Visitors and Observations in Schools
4. 7000          Concepts and Roles in Planning for Educational Facilities

#### 4. Public Comment

An individual may address the Board concerning any item on the agenda for the meeting subject to the following provisions:

- A. A three-minute time limit may be allocated to each speaker with a maximum of twenty minutes being set aside per meeting. The Board may, by a majority vote, cancel or adjust these time limits.
- B. If a member of the public comments about the performance of an employee or a Board member, whether positive, negative, or neutral, and whether named or not, the Board shall not respond to such comments unless the topic is an explicit item on the agenda and the employee or the Board member has been provided with the requisite notice and due process required by law. Similarly, in accordance with federal law pertaining to student confidentiality, the Board shall not respond to or otherwise discuss any comments that might be made pertaining to students.

#### 5. Adjourn

**Sub-Committee Members: Tammy McInerney, Chairperson**  
**Sarah Herring**  
**Dean Barile**  
**Randall Scofield**

**Alternates: Wendy Faulenbach**  
**Eric Hansell**

**Note: Revision to School Security and Safety Policy**

**On March 3, 2025, Governor Lamont signed into law Public Act 25-1, which, among other things, addresses immigration enforcement activity at schools and establishes new responsibilities for superintendents and boards of education regarding the development of procedures for interacting with federal immigration authorities. The new law directs public school superintendents to designate, *on or before April 1, 2025*, at least one administrator at each school to be responsible for interacting with federal immigration authorities who appear in person at the school or contact the school to request information. The new law also directs boards of education to update, *for the 2024-2025 school year*, their school security and safety plans (which must, under existing law, be developed for each school and be based on standards established by the Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection) with protocols for interacting with such federal immigration authorities. The School Security and Safety Plan has been revised to reflect the new requirements.**

**Series 1000  
Community Relations**

**1111**

**POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  
REGARDING SCHOOL SECURITY AND SAFETY**

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) will develop and implement an all-hazards security and safety plan with a school-specific annex for each school within the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”) or a school security and safety plan for each school within the District (together, “School Security and Safety Plans”) to bolster existing emergency preparedness, response capability, and school safety and security measures and to address all-hazards threats.

School Security and Safety Plans will be based on the school security and safety plan standards developed by the Connecticut Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection (“DESPP”), the Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities developed by the Connecticut State Department of Education (“CSDE”), and other applicable requirements.

For the school year commencing July 1, 2024, and each school year thereafter, each School Security and Safety Plan shall be updated to include protocols for interacting with a federal immigration authority who appears in person at a school in the District or otherwise contacts a school to request information. For purposes of this policy, a “federal immigration authority” means “any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement or any successor agency thereto or any division thereof or any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Department of Homeland Security or any successor agency thereto who is charged with enforcement of the civil provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.”

Such protocols shall be based on applicable law and the CSDE’s Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities”), or any subsequent applicable CSDE guidance, and shall include, at a minimum:

- A. the designation of at least one administrator at each school to serve as the individual responsible for interacting with the federal immigration authority;
- B. provisions that such administrator, or any other school employee, may:
  - 1. request and record a federal immigration authority's identification, including the name, badge or identification number, telephone number and business card of such federal immigration authority;
  - 2. ask such federal immigration authority if the federal immigration authority is in possession of a judicial warrant to support the federal immigration authority's request and, if so, to produce such judicial warrant;
  - 3. review any warrant or other materials that the federal immigration authority produces to determine who issued such warrant and what the warrant or other material authorizes the federal immigration authority to do; and
  - 4. consult with legal counsel for the Board, or guidance developed by such legal counsel, on how to interact with the federal immigration authority with regards to the nature of the request, whether a warrant is produced, the details of any such warrant, whether such warrant is a judicial warrant or an administrative warrant, whether the federal immigration authority is claiming exigent circumstances, and any other consideration identified by the Board's legal counsel; and
- C. permission for other school personnel to direct such federal immigration authority who requests access to any records, information, the interior of the school building or other school personnel to communicate with the administrator designated to interact with the federal immigration authority.

The Board shall annually submit its School Security and Safety Plans to DESPP, in accordance with state law.

School Security and Safety Plans should be kept securely and will only be provided to the Board, school staff and administration, members of the school security and safety committees, members of state and local law enforcement, first responders, local municipal officials, or other persons authorized by the Board or the Superintendent (e.g., consultants, contractors). Pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes § 1-210(b)(19), School Security and Safety Plans will not be available to the public.

Legal References:

State Law:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 1-210(b)(19)

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222m

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222n

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222aa

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-231

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 28-7

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 54-192h

Public Act No. 25-1, “An Act Concerning Interactions Between School Personnel and Immigration Authorities, the Purchase and Operation of Certain Drones, Grants to Certain Nonprofit Organizations, and Student Athlete Compensation Through Endorsement Contracts and Revenue Sharing Agreements”

State Standards:

Connecticut Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection, *School Security and Safety Plan Standards*.

Connecticut State Department of Education, *Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities* (January 28, 2025).

Federal Guidance:

Federal Emergency Management Agency, *Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans* (June 2013).

Approved: September 19, 2023

Revised:

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

New Milford, Connecticut

## SCHOOL SECURITY AND SAFETY ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

### I. Security and Safety Committee

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”), through the Superintendent of Schools (the “Superintendent”), shall establish a school security and safety committee at each school under the jurisdiction of the Board (the “Security and Safety Committee”). The Security and Safety Committee is responsible for assisting in the development of the school’s security and safety plan (the “School Security and Safety Plan”) and in administering said plan.

The Security and Safety Committee shall include in its membership a local police officer, a local first responder, a teacher, the administrator(s) designated by the Superintendent to serve as the individual(s) responsible for interacting with a federal immigration authority who appears in person at the location of the school or otherwise contacts the school to request information, a building administrator employed at the school, a mental health professional, a parent or guardian of a student at the school, and any other person the Board deems necessary such as another building administrator, a special education department representative, custodian, property manager, local emergency management director, local public health director, information technology manager, transportation coordinator, or school nurse. Subject matter experts, including but not limited to the local public works director, food services director, the Superintendent, additional law enforcement members, or first responders and representatives of the municipality or others shall be invited to participate as needed.

The Security and Safety Committee will meet at least annually to review and update the School Security and Safety Plan, as necessary. In determining whether the School Security and Safety Plan requires updating, the Security and Safety Committee will take into account the results of the security and vulnerability assessment of the school, as described in Section IV below. The Security and Safety Committee shall also be notified of any instances of disturbing or threatening behavior that may not meet the definition of bullying.

Any information provided under this regulation shall be provided in accordance with the confidentiality restrictions imposed under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”) and the Board’s Confidentiality and Access to Student Information policy and accompanying regulations. Specifically, any parent/guardian serving as a member of the Security and Safety Committee shall not have access to information reported to the Security and Safety Committee that would result in a violation of FERPA, and the access of other members of the Security and Safety Committee to personally identifiable student information shall be limited to those individuals on such committee who have a legitimate educational interest in such information.

## II. School Security and Safety Plan

Each School Security and Safety Plan will be created using the format prescribed by the Connecticut Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection (“DESPP”).

For the school year commencing July 1, 2024, and each school year thereafter, each School Security and Safety Plan shall be updated to include protocols for interacting with a federal immigration authority who appears in person at a school in the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”) or otherwise contacts a school to request information. For purposes of these Administrative Regulations, a “federal immigration authority” means “any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement or any successor agency thereto or any division thereof or any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Department of Homeland Security or any successor agency thereto who is charged with enforcement of the civil provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.”

Such protocols shall be based on applicable law and the Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities developed by the Connecticut State Department of Education (“CSDE”), or any subsequent applicable CSDE guidance, and shall include, at a minimum:

- A. the designation of at least one administrator at each school to serve as the individual responsible for interacting with the federal immigration authority;
- B. provisions that such administrator, or any other school employee, may:
  - 1. request and record a federal immigration authority’s identification, including the name, badge or identification number, telephone number and business card of such federal immigration authority;
  - 2. ask such federal immigration authority if the federal immigration authority is in possession of a judicial warrant to support the federal immigration authority’s request and, if so, to produce such judicial warrant;
  - 3. review any warrant or other materials that the federal immigration authority produces to determine who issued such warrant and what the warrant or other material authorizes the federal immigration authority to do; and
  - 4. consult with legal counsel for the Board, or guidance developed by such legal counsel, on how to interact with the federal immigration authority with regards to the nature of the request, whether a warrant is produced, the details of any such warrant, whether such warrant is a judicial

warrant or an administrative warrant, whether the federal immigration authority is claiming exigent circumstances, and any other consideration identified by the Board's legal counsel; and

- C. permission for other school personnel to direct such federal immigration authority who requests access to any records, information, the interior of the school building or other school personnel to communicate with the administrator designated to interact with the federal immigration authority.

**NOTE TO CLIENT: The following protocols are not required by state law, but they are included as recommendations in the CSDE's Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities, and may be included in the security and safety plan:**

- D. direction that staff maintain a calm and cooperative manner to avoid: 1) escalating the situation; 2) increasing anxiety among the staff and students; or 3) being perceived as obstructing or interfering with any lawful activities; and
- E. direction that the designated administrator or other staff record details regarding the visit, any access the agents gained to information, records, areas, or individuals, whether that access was granted and, if so, who granted such access.

The Board will submit the finalized School Security and Safety Plan for each school to DESPP via its Division of Emergency Management and Homeland Security ("DEHMS") Regional Coordinator. On or before November 1 of each school year, the Board will also submit to its DESPP/DEMHS Regional Coordinator the results of the security and vulnerability assessment described in Section IV of these regulations. Additionally, each School Security and Safety Plan will be filed as an annex to the municipality's Local Emergency Operations Plan, filed annually with DESPP/DEMHS pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 28-7. A reference kit that meets the requirements of DESPP/DEMHS will be created in conjunction with the security and safety plan, which will be available to first responders in the event of a safety or security emergency.

### **III. Training and Orientation for School Employees**

Each school employee at the school shall receive an orientation on the School Security and Safety Plan, including the school-specific annexes relevant to that employee. Additionally, each school employee at the school shall receive violence prevention training in a manner described in the School Security and Safety Plan. The training will be conducted in cooperation with the Security and Safety Committee and may include other municipal or emergency officials and services. The goal of the orientation and training is to provide the school community and municipal officials with an understanding of the need for unified planning, preparedness, and response.

#### IV. Assessments

At least every two years, the Board shall conduct a security and vulnerability assessment for each school in the District. Each school's Security and Safety Committee shall be advised of the results of the assessment for the Security and Safety Committee's school, and such results shall be considered by the Security and Safety Committee in updating and revising the School Security and Safety Plan.

Local law enforcement and other public safety officials, including the local emergency management director, fire marshal, building inspector and emergency medical services representative, shall each evaluate, score, and provide feedback on a representative sample of fire drills and crisis response drills at each school in the District. By July 1 of each year, the Board shall submit a report to the DEMHS Regional Coordinator regarding types, frequency, and feedback related to the fire drills and crisis response drills.

#### Legal References:

##### State Law:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 1-210(b)(19)

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222m

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222n

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222aa

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-231

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 28-7

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 54-192h

Public Act No. 25-1, "An Act Concerning Interactions Between School Personnel and Immigration Authorities, the Purchase and Operation of Certain Drones, Grants to Certain Nonprofit Organizations, and Student Athlete Compensation Through Endorsement Contracts and Revenue Sharing Agreements"

##### State Standards:

Connecticut Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection, *School Security and Safety Plan Standards*.

Connecticut State Department of Education, *Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities* (January 28, 2025).

Federal Guidance:

Federal Emergency Management Agency, *Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans* (June 2013).

Regulation Approved: September 19, 2023

Regulation Revised:

1111 Comparison Document: ~~Red Strike Through—Deleted language~~  
Blue is new language

Series 1000  
Community Relations

1111

## **POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING SCHOOL SECURITY AND SAFETY**

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) will develop and implement an all-hazards ~~district~~ security and safety plan with a school-specific annex for each school within the ~~district~~ New Public Schools (the “District”) or a school security and safety plan for each school within the ~~district~~ District (together, “School Security and Safety Plans”) to bolster ~~their~~ existing emergency preparedness, response capability, and school safety and security measures and to ~~best meet~~ address all-hazards threats.

School Security and ~~safety plans~~ Safety Plans will be based on the school security and safety plan standards developed by the Connecticut Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection ~~and will adhere to the~~ (“DESPP”), the Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities developed by the Connecticut State Department of Education (“CSDE”), and other applicable requirements ~~of state law~~.

For the school year commencing July 1, 2024, and each school year thereafter, each School Security and Safety Plan shall be updated to include protocols for interacting with a federal immigration authority who appears in person at a school in the District or otherwise contacts a school to request information. For purposes of this policy, a “federal immigration authority” means “any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement or any successor agency thereto or any division thereof or any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Department of Homeland Security or any successor agency thereto who is charged with enforcement of the civil provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.”

Such protocols shall be based on applicable law and the CSDE’s Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities”), or any subsequent applicable CSDE guidance, and shall include, at a minimum:

- A. the designation of at least one administrator at each school to serve as the individual responsible for interacting with the federal immigration authority;
- B. provisions that such administrator, or any other school employee, may:
  - 1. request and record a federal immigration authority’s identification, including the name, badge or identification number, telephone number and business card of such federal immigration authority;

2. ask such federal immigration authority if the federal immigration authority is in possession of a judicial warrant to support the federal immigration authority's request and, if so, to produce such judicial warrant;
  3. review any warrant or other materials that the federal immigration authority produces to determine who issued such warrant and what the warrant or other material authorizes the federal immigration authority to do; and
  4. consult with legal counsel for the Board, or guidance developed by such legal counsel, on how to interact with the federal immigration authority with regards to the nature of the request, whether a warrant is produced, the details of any such warrant, whether such warrant is a judicial warrant or an administrative warrant, whether the federal immigration authority is claiming exigent circumstances, and any other consideration identified by the Board's legal counsel; and
- C. permission for other school personnel to direct such federal immigration authority who requests access to any records, information, the interior of the school building or other school personnel to communicate with the administrator designated to interact with the federal immigration authority.

The Board shall annually submit its School Security and Safety Plans to DESPP, in accordance with state law.

School Security and ~~safety plans~~Safety Plans should be kept securely and will only be provided to the Board, school staff and administration, members of the school security and safety committees, members of state and local law enforcement, first responders, local municipal officials, or other persons authorized by the Board or the Superintendent (e.g., consultants, contractors). Pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes § 1-210(b)(19), ~~the plan~~School Security and Safety Plans will not be available to the public.

Legal References:

State Law:

- Conn. Gen. Stat. § 1-210(b)(19)
- Conn. Gen. Stat. § ~~10-222k~~10-222m
- Conn. Gen. Stat. § ~~10-222m~~10-222n
- Conn. Gen. Stat. § ~~10-222n~~10-222aa
- Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-231
- Conn. Gen. Stat. § 28-7

[Conn. Gen. Stat. § 54-192h](#)

[Public Act No. 25-1, “An Act Concerning Interactions Between School Personnel and Immigration Authorities, the Purchase and Operation of Certain Drones, Grants to Certain Nonprofit Organizations, and Student Athlete Compensation Through Endorsement Contracts and Revenue Sharing Agreements”](#)

State Standards:

Connecticut Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection,  
*School Security and Safety Plan Standards.*

[Connecticut State Department of Education, \*Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities\* \(January 28, 2025\).](#)

Federal Guidance:

Federal Emergency Management Agency, *Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans*, ~~(June 2013)~~. [\(June 2013\)](#).

Approved: September 19, 2023

Revised:

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

New Milford, Connecticut

## SCHOOL SECURITY AND SAFETY ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

### I. Security and Safety Committee

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”), through the Superintendent of Schools (the “Superintendent”), shall establish a school security and safety committee at each school under the jurisdiction of the Board.~~\* The school security and safety committee (the “Security and Safety Committee”).~~ The Security and Safety Committee is responsible for assisting in the development of the school’s security and safety plan (the “School Security and Safety Plan”) and in administering ~~the~~said plan.

The ~~school security and safety committee~~Security and Safety Committee shall include in its membership a local police officer, a local first responder, a teacher ~~employed at the school,~~ the administrator(s) designated by the Superintendent to serve as the individual(s) responsible for interacting with a federal immigration authority who appears in person at the location of the school or otherwise contacts the school to request information, a building administrator employed at the school, a mental health professional, a parent or guardian of a student at the school, and any other person the Board deems necessary [such as another building administrator, a special education department representative, custodian, property manager, local emergency management director, local public health director, information technology manager, transportation coordinator, or school nurse]. Subject matter experts, including but not limited to the local public works director, food services director, the Superintendent ~~of Schools,~~ additional law enforcement members, or first responders and representatives of the municipality or others shall be invited to participate as needed.

*~~[\*NOTE: The school security and safety committee may be combined with an existing school committee, such as the Safe School Climate Committee, as long as the Safe School Climate Committee has the required members listed below.]~~*

The ~~committee~~Security and Safety Committee will meet at least annually to review and update the ~~school’s security and safety plan~~School Security and Safety Plan, as necessary. In determining whether the ~~security and safety plan~~School Security and Safety Plan requires updating, the ~~committee~~Security and Safety Committee will take into account the results of the security and vulnerability assessment of the school, as described in Section IV below. The ~~security and safety committee~~Security and Safety Committee shall also be notified of any instances of disturbing or threatening behavior that may not meet the definition of bullying ~~and shall report such information, as necessary, to the district safe school climate coordinator.~~

Any information provided under this regulation shall be provided in accordance with the confidentiality restrictions imposed under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”) and the district’s Board’s Confidentiality and Access to Student Information policy and accompanying regulations. Specifically, any parent/guardian serving as a member of the ~~school security and safety committee~~Security and Safety Committee shall not have access to ~~any~~

information reported to the ~~committee or participate in any activities which may compromise the confidentiality of any student.~~ Security and Safety Committee that would result in a violation of FERPA, and the access of other members of the Security and Safety Committee to personally identifiable student information shall be limited to those individuals on such committee who have a legitimate educational interest in such information.

## II. School Security and Safety Plan

Each ~~school security and safety plan~~ School Security and Safety Plan will be created using the format prescribed by the Connecticut ~~State~~ Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection/~~Division of Emergency Management and Homeland Security.~~ (“DESPP”).

For the school year commencing July 1, 2024, and each school year thereafter, each School Security and Safety Plan shall be updated to include protocols for interacting with a federal immigration authority who appears in person at a school in the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”) or otherwise contacts a school to request information. For purposes of these Administrative Regulations, a “federal immigration authority” means “any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement or any successor agency thereto or any division thereof or any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Department of Homeland Security or any successor agency thereto who is charged with enforcement of the civil provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.”

Such protocols shall be based on applicable law and the Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities developed by the Connecticut State Department of Education (“CSDE”), or any subsequent applicable CSDE guidance, and shall include, at a minimum:

- A. the designation of at least one administrator at each school to serve as the individual responsible for interacting with the federal immigration authority;
- B. provisions that such administrator, or any other school employee, may:
  - 1. request and record a federal immigration authority’s identification, including the name, badge or identification number, telephone number and business card of such federal immigration authority;
  - 2. ask such federal immigration authority if the federal immigration authority is in possession of a judicial warrant to support the federal immigration authority’s request and, if so, to produce such judicial warrant;
  - 3. review any warrant or other materials that the federal immigration authority produces to determine who issued such warrant and what the warrant or other material authorizes the federal immigration authority to do; and

4. consult with legal counsel for the Board, or guidance developed by such legal counsel, on how to interact with the federal immigration authority with regards to the nature of the request, whether a warrant is produced, the details of any such warrant, whether such warrant is a judicial warrant or an administrative warrant, whether the federal immigration authority is claiming exigent circumstances, and any other consideration identified by the Board's legal counsel; and
- C. permission for other school personnel to direct such federal immigration authority who requests access to any records, information, the interior of the school building or other school personnel to communicate with the administrator designated to interact with the federal immigration authority.

[NOTE TO CLIENT: The following protocols are not required by state law, but they are included as recommendations in the CSDE's Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities, and may be included in the security and safety plan:

D. direction that staff maintain a calm and cooperative manner to avoid: 1) escalating the situation; 2) increasing anxiety among the staff and students; or 3) being perceived as obstructing or interfering with any lawful activities; and

E. direction that the designated administrator or other staff record details regarding the visit, any access the agents gained to information, records, areas, or individuals, whether that access was granted and, if so, who granted such access.]

The Board will submit the finalized ~~school security and safety plan~~ School Security and Safety Plan for each school to ~~the Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection/DESPP~~ via its Division of Emergency Management and Homeland Security ("DEHMS") Regional Coordinator. On or before November ~~1<sup>st</sup>~~ 1 of each school year, the Board will also submit to ~~the Department of Emergency Management and Homeland Security Regional Coordinators~~ one of the following: (1) those pages of the district's plans that been updated; (2) the form provided by the Department of Emergency Management and Homeland Security that the district's plans have not changed, along with an updated signature page; or (3) a revised plan if a current plan has undergone a major revision. its DESPP/DEMHS Regional Coordinator the results of the security and vulnerability assessment described in Section IV of these regulations. Additionally, each ~~plan~~ School Security and Safety Plan will be filed as an annex to the municipality's Local Emergency Operations Plan, filed annually with DESPP/DEMHS pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 28-7. A reference kit that meets the requirements of DESPP/DEMHS will be created in conjunction with the security and safety plan, which will be available to first responders in the event of a safety or security emergency.

### III. Training and Orientation for School Employees

Each school employee at the school shall receive an orientation on the ~~district security and safety plan~~ School Security and Safety Plan, including the school-specific annexes relevant to that employee, ~~or the school's security and safety plan~~. Additionally, each school employee at the school shall receive violence prevention training in a manner described in the ~~security and~~

~~safety plan~~School Security and Safety Plan. The training will be conducted in cooperation with the ~~school safety and security committee~~Security and Safety Committee and may include other municipal or emergency officials and services. The goal of the orientation and training is to provide the school community and municipal officials with an understanding of the need for unified planning, preparedness, and response.

#### IV. Assessments

At least every two years, the Board shall conduct a security and vulnerability assessment for each school in the ~~district~~District. Each school's ~~security and safety committee~~Security and Safety Committee shall be advised of the results of the assessment for the ~~committee's school~~Security and Safety Committee's school, and such results shall be considered by the ~~committee~~Security and Safety Committee in updating and revising the ~~security and safety plans~~School Security and Safety Plan.

Local law enforcement and other public safety officials, including the local emergency management director, fire marshal, building inspector and emergency medical services representative, shall each evaluate, score, and provide feedback on a representative sample of fire drills and crisis response drills at each school in the ~~district~~District. By July 1<sup>st</sup> of each year, the Board shall submit a report to the ~~Department of Emergency Management Homeland Security~~DEMHS Regional Coordinator regarding types, frequency, and feedback related to the fire drills and crisis response drills.

#### Legal References:

##### State Law:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 1-210(b)(19)

Conn. Gen. Stat. § ~~10-222k~~10-222m

Conn. Gen. Stat. § ~~10-222m~~10-222n

Conn. Gen. Stat. § ~~10-222n~~10-222aa

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-231

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 28-7

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 54-192h

Public Act No. 25-1, "An Act Concerning Interactions Between School Personnel and Immigration Authorities, the Purchase and Operation of Certain Drones, Grants to Certain Nonprofit Organizations, and Student Athlete Compensation Through Endorsement Contracts and Revenue Sharing Agreements"

State Standards:

Connecticut Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection, *School Security and Safety Plan Standards*.

[Connecticut State Department of Education, \*Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities\* \(January 28, 2025\).](#)

Federal Guidance:

Federal Emergency Management Agency, *Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans*; [\(June 2013\).](#)

Regulation Approved: September 19, 2023

Regulation Revised:

**Note: Revision to Visitors and Observations in Schools Policy**

**Governor Lamont recently signed into law Public Act 25-1, which, among other things, addresses immigration enforcement activity at schools. This policy has been revised to clarify that, in the event that a federal immigration authority appears in person at a school under the board of education’s jurisdiction or otherwise contacts a school to request information, the immigration authority shall be directed to communicate with the administrator designated for such interactions, who will follow the protocols outlined in the school’s Security and Safety Plan.**

**Series 1000  
Community Relations**

**1250**

**POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  
REGARDING VISITORS AND OBSERVATIONS IN SCHOOLS**

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) encourages visits by citizens, taxpayers, and parents to all school buildings. In order to promote a safe and productive educational environment for all students and staff, the Board requires all visitors to receive prior approval from the school principal or designee before being permitted to visit any school building. The Board, through the administration, reserves the right to limit visits in accordance with administrative regulations.

The Board further desires to work collaboratively with parents with an educational nexus with the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”), its educational programs, or the student being observed, to observe their students in their current classrooms or observe proposed educational placements in the Board’s schools. The Board, through the administration, reserves the right to limit observations of current and proposed educational placements in accordance with administrative regulations and the Board’s Guidelines for Independent Educational Evaluations.

Upon arrival, all visitors and observers must comply with any and all applicable building security procedures, including but not limited to utilizing security buzzers for access, complying with requests for photo identification, reporting directly to and signing in and out at the visitors’ reception area of the school office, prominently displaying visitors’ badges or other identification required for visitors to the school buildings, limiting access to those areas of the buildings and grounds for which the visitors/observers have authorized access, refraining from engaging with students and/or staff except as permitted by the school officials and consistent with the purpose of the visit in question, and complying with directives of school officials at all times. All visitors and observers permitted into school buildings or on school grounds must comply with all school health and safety protocols in place at the time, including but not limited to any health screening or personal protective equipment (“PPE”) protocols.

In the event that a federal immigration authority appears in person at a school in the District or otherwise contacts a school to request information, in accordance with applicable law and pursuant to the Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities developed by the Connecticut State Department of Education (“CSDE”) or any subsequent applicable

CSDE guidance, such authority shall be directed to communicate with the administrator designated for such interactions, who will follow the protocols outlined in the school’s Security and Safety Plan. For purposes of this policy, a “federal immigration authority” means “any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement or any successor agency thereto or any division thereof or any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Department of Homeland Security or any successor agency thereto who is charged with enforcement of the civil provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.”

Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222m

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 54-192h

Public Act No. 25-1, “An Act Concerning Interactions Between School Personnel and Immigration Authorities, the Purchase and Operation of Certain Drones, Grants to Certain Nonprofit Organizations, and Student Athlete Compensation Through Endorsement Contracts and Revenue Sharing Agreements”

Connecticut State Department of Education, *Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities* (January 28, 2025).

Connecticut State Department of Education, *Guidelines Regarding Independent Educational Evaluations at Public Expense and In-School Observations* (March 28, 2018).

Approved: September 19, 2023  
Revised:

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

**ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  
REGARDING VISITORS AND OBSERVATIONS IN SCHOOLS**

1. Any person wishing to visit a school building in the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”), and/or observe any student program, must obtain prior approval from the building principal or responsible administrator of the respective school building or program.
2. A visitor to any school building or program must be able to articulate a legitimate operational or educational reason for the proposed visit and/or observation. Where the visitation involves direct contact with District students, or observation of an identified student or student program, the visitor must have a sufficient educational nexus with the District, its educational programs, or the student to support such request.
3. All visits must be reasonable in length and conducted in a manner designed to minimize disruption to the District’s educational programs, as determined by school officials.
4. When a parent/guardian makes a request to observe an identified student or student program, the request will be reviewed with the student’s parent/guardian to determine the purpose of the observation, specific questions being addressed, the location(s) of the observation, and the date, time and length of the observation.
5. When determining whether to approve a request to visit and/or observe individual students or student programs, the building principal or responsible administrator shall consider the following factors:
  - a. the frequency of visits;
  - b. the duration of the visit;
  - c. the number of visitors involved;
  - d. the effect of the visit on a particular class or activity;
  - e. the age of the students;
  - f. the nature of the class or program;
  - g. the potential for disclosure of confidential personally identifiable student information;
  - h. whether the visitor/observer has a legitimate educational interest in visiting the school;

- i. whether the visitor/observer has professional ethical obligations not to disclose any personally identifiable student information;
  - j. any safety risk to students and school staff; and
  - k. compliance with the Board's Guidelines for Independent Educational Evaluations, if applicable.
6. The building principal or responsible administrator has the discretion to limit, or refuse, requests for visits and/or observations of student programs in light of the above criteria. When a requested observation is refused, the building principal or responsible administrator will provide the parent/guardian with the reason for the decision and will work to develop alternative ways designed to permit the parent/guardian to obtain the information the parent/guardian seeks.
7. If a building principal or responsible administrator approves a request to visit a school building and/or observe a student program, arrangements must be made in advance to ensure that the visit will not disrupt educational programs. The length and scope of any visit shall be determined by the building principal or responsible administrator in accordance with these regulations and accompanying Board policy. The building principal or responsible administrator shall determine a reasonable amount of time for observations of individual students or student programs.
8. Upon arrival, all visitors must comply with any and all applicable building security procedures, including but not limited to utilizing security buzzers for access, complying with requests for photo identification, reporting directly to and signing in and out at the visitors' reception area of the school office, prominently displaying visitors' badges or other identification required for visitors to the school buildings, limiting access to those areas of the buildings and grounds for which the visitors have authorized access, refraining from engaging with students and/or staff except as permitted by the school officials and consistent with the purpose of the visit in question, and complying with directives of school officials at all times.
9. The District has an obligation to maintain the confidentiality of personally identifiable student information. All visitors and observers must restrict their visits and observations to the purpose identified in the request to visit or observe and are strictly prohibited from observing or collecting information on other students within the school. If the visitor/observer views, accesses, or otherwise obtains personally identifiable student information concerning another student, the visitor/observer must notify the building principal or responsible administrator as soon as possible.
10. All visitors and observers permitted inside school buildings or on school grounds must comply with all school health and safety protocols in place at the time, including but not limited to any health screening or personal protective equipment ("PPE") protocols.

11. A refusal to comply with any of the Board’s policy provisions and/or regulations concerning visitors shall constitute grounds for denial of the visitor’s or observer’s privileges, as determined appropriate by the building principal or designee. Such refusal may also result in a referral to law enforcement personnel, as determined appropriate by the building principal or designee.
12. In the event that a federal immigration authority appears in person at a school in the District or otherwise contacts a school to request information, in accordance with applicable law and pursuant to the Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities developed by the Connecticut State Department of Education (“CSDE”) or any subsequent applicable CSDE guidance, such authority shall be directed to communicate with the administrator designated for such interactions, who will follow the protocols outlined in the school’s Security and Safety Plan. For purposes of these Administrative Regulations, a “federal immigration authority” means “any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement or any successor agency thereto or any division thereof or any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Department of Homeland Security or any successor agency thereto who is charged with enforcement of the civil provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.”

Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222m

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 54-192h

Public Act No. 25-1, “An Act Concerning Interactions Between School Personnel and Immigration Authorities, the Purchase and Operation of Certain Drones, Grants to Certain Nonprofit Organizations, and Student Athlete Compensation Through Endorsement Contracts and Revenue Sharing Agreements”

Connecticut State Department of Education, *Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities* (January 28, 2025).

Connecticut State Department of Education, *Guidelines Regarding Independent Educational Evaluations at Public Expense and In-School Observations* (March 28, 2018).

Regulation Approved: September 19, 2023

Regulation Revised:

## POLICY REGARDING VISITORS AND OBSERVATIONS IN SCHOOLS

The ~~\_\_\_\_\_Board~~ New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) encourages visits by citizens, taxpayers, and parents to all school buildings. In order to promote a safe and productive educational environment for all students and staff, the Board requires all visitors to receive prior approval from the school ~~Principal~~ principal or designee before being permitted to visit any school building. The Board, through the administration, reserves the right to limit visits in accordance with administrative regulations.

The Board further desires to work collaboratively with parents with an educational nexus with the ~~district~~ New Milford Public Schools (the “District”), its educational programs, or the student being observed, to observe their students in their current classrooms or observe proposed educational placements in the Board’s schools. The Board, through the administration, reserves the right to limit observations of current and proposed educational placements in accordance with administrative regulations and the Board’s Guidelines for Independent Educational Evaluations.

Upon arrival, all visitors and observers must comply with any and all applicable building security procedures, including but not limited to utilizing security buzzers for access, complying with requests for photo identification, reporting directly to and signing in and out at the visitors’ reception area of the school office, prominently displaying visitors’ badges or other identification required for visitors to the school buildings, limiting access to those areas of the buildings and grounds for which the visitors/observers have authorized access, refraining from engaging with students and/or staff except as permitted by the school officials and consistent with the purpose of the visit in question, and complying with directives of school officials at all times. All visitors and observers permitted into school buildings or on school grounds must comply with all school health and safety protocols in place at the time, including but not limited to any health screening or personal protective equipment (“PPE”) protocols.

In the event that a federal immigration authority appears in person at a school in the District or otherwise contacts a school to request information, in accordance with applicable law and pursuant to the Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities developed by the Connecticut State Department of Education (“CSDE”) or any subsequent applicable CSDE guidance, such authority shall be directed to communicate with the administrator designated for such interactions, who will follow the protocols outlined in the school’s Security and Safety Plan. For purposes of this policy, a “federal immigration authority” means “any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement or any successor agency thereto or any division thereof or any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United

States Department of Homeland Security or any successor agency thereto who is charged with enforcement of the civil provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.”

Legal References:

[Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222m](#)

[Conn. Gen. Stat. § 54-192h](#)

[Public Act No. 25-1, “An Act Concerning Interactions Between School Personnel and Immigration Authorities, the Purchase and Operation of Certain Drones, Grants to Certain Nonprofit Organizations, and Student Athlete Compensation Through Endorsement Contracts and Revenue Sharing Agreements”](#)

[Connecticut State Department of Education, \*Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities\* \(January 28, 2025\).](#)

[“~~Connecticut State Department of Education~~, \*Guidelines Regarding Independent Educational Evaluations at Public Expense and ~~In-School~~In-School Observations,\*”](#)  
~~Connecticut State Department of Education (Mar. (March~~ [March](#) 28, 2018).

Approved:  
Revised:

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS  
New Milford, Connecticut

**ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  
REGARDING VISITORS AND OBSERVATIONS IN SCHOOLS**

1. Any person wishing to visit a school building in the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”), and/or observe any student program, must obtain prior approval from the building ~~Principal~~principal or responsible administrator of the respective school building or program.
2. A visitor to any school building or program must be able to articulate a legitimate operational or educational reason for the proposed visit and/or observation. Where the visitation involves direct contact with ~~district~~District students, or observation of an identified student or student program, the visitor must have a sufficient educational nexus with the ~~district~~District, its educational programs, or the student to support such request.
3. All visits must be reasonable in length and conducted in a manner designed to minimize disruption to the ~~district’s~~District’s educational programs, as determined by school officials.
4. When a parent/guardian makes a request to observe an identified student or student program, the request will be reviewed with the student’s parent/guardian to determine the purpose of the observation, specific questions being addressed, the location(s) of the observation, and the date, time and length of the observation.
5. When determining whether to approve a request to visit and/or observe individual students or student programs, the building ~~Principal~~principal or responsible administrator shall consider the following factors:
  - a. the frequency of visits;
  - b. the duration of the visit;
  - c. the number of visitors involved;
  - d. the effect of the visit on a particular class or activity;
  - e. the age of the students;
  - f. the nature of the class or program;
  - g. the potential for disclosure of confidential personally identifiable student information;

- h. whether the visitor/observer has a legitimate educational interest in visiting the school;
  - i. whether the visitor/observer has professional ethical obligations not to disclose any personally identifiable student information;
  - j. any safety risk to students and school staff; and
  - k. compliance with the Board's Guidelines for Independent Educational Evaluations, if applicable.
6. The building ~~Principal~~principal or responsible administrator has the discretion to limit, or refuse, requests for visits and/or observations of student programs in light of the above criteria. When a requested observation is refused, the building ~~Principal~~principal or responsible administrator will provide the parent/guardian with the reason for the decision and will work to develop alternative ways ~~for~~designed to permit the parent/guardian to obtain the information the parent/guardian seeks.
  7. If a building ~~Principal~~principal or responsible administrator approves a request to visit a school building and/or observe a student program, arrangements must be made in advance to ensure that the visit will not disrupt educational programs. The length and scope of any visit shall be determined by the building ~~Principal~~principal or responsible administrator in accordance with these regulations and accompanying Board policy. The building ~~Principal~~principal or responsible administrator shall determine a reasonable amount of time for observations of individual students or student programs.
  8. Upon arrival, all visitors must comply with any and all applicable building security procedures, including but not limited to utilizing security buzzers for access, complying with requests for photo identification, reporting directly to and signing in and out at the visitors' reception area of the school office, prominently displaying visitors' badges or other identification required for visitors to the school buildings, limiting access to those areas of the buildings and grounds for which the visitors have authorized access, refraining from engaging with students and/or staff except as permitted by the school officials and consistent with the purpose of the visit in question, and complying with directives of school officials at all times.
  9. The ~~district~~District has an obligation to maintain the confidentiality of personally identifiable student information. All visitors and observers must restrict their visits and observations to the purpose identified in the request to visit or observe and are strictly prohibited from observing or collecting information on other students within the school. If the visitor/observer views, accesses, or otherwise obtains personally identifiable student information concerning another student, the visitor/observer must notify the building ~~Principal~~principal or responsible administrator as soon as possible.
  10. All visitors and observers permitted inside school buildings or on school grounds must comply with all school health and safety protocols in place at the time, including but not limited to any health screening or personal protective equipment ("PPE") protocols.

11. A refusal to comply with any of the Board’s policy provisions and/or regulations concerning visitors shall constitute grounds for denial of the visitor’s or observer’s privileges, as determined appropriate by the building ~~Principal~~principal or designee. Such refusal may also result in a referral to law enforcement personnel, as determined appropriate by the building ~~Principal~~principal or designee.
  
12. In the event that a federal immigration authority appears in person at a school in the District or otherwise contacts a school to request information, in accordance with applicable law and pursuant to the Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities developed by the Connecticut State Department of Education (“CSDE”) or any subsequent applicable CSDE guidance, such authority shall be directed to communicate with the administrator designated for such interactions, who will follow the protocols outlined in the school’s Security and Safety Plan. For purposes of these Administrative Regulations, a “federal immigration authority” means “any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement or any successor agency thereto or any division thereof or any officer, employee or other person otherwise paid by or acting as an agent of the United States Department of Homeland Security or any successor agency thereto who is charged with enforcement of the civil provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.”

Legal References:

[Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222m](#)

[Conn. Gen. Stat. § 54-192h](#)

[Public Act No. 25-1, “An Act Concerning Interactions Between School Personnel and Immigration Authorities, the Purchase and Operation of Certain Drones, Grants to Certain Nonprofit Organizations, and Student Athlete Compensation Through Endorsement Contracts and Revenue Sharing Agreements”](#)

[Connecticut State Department of Education, \*Guidance to K-12 Public Schools Pertaining to Immigration Activities\* \(January 28, 2025\).](#)

[“Connecticut State Department of Education, \*Guidelines Regarding Independent Educational Evaluations at Public Expense and ~~In-School~~In-School Observations\*,” Connecticut State Department of Education \(Mar. \[\\(March\]\(#\) 28, 2018\).](#)

Regulation Approved: September 19, 2023

Revised:

**Note: This is a new policy to provide guidance when naming or renaming a school building, components of school buildings and/or school grounds.**

**When reviewing this policy, it would be helpful to also review Policy 7000-Concepts and Roles in Planning for Educational Facilities, page 7000(c), section G. Facilities, #3— Naming a Facility/Renaming of School Buildings, Components of School Buildings, and/or School Grounds.**

**Series 1000  
Community Relations**

**1340**

### **NAMING OR RENAMING OF SCHOOL BUILDINGS, COMPONENTES OF SCHOOL BUILDINGS, AND/OR SCHOOL GROUNDS**

The naming and/or renaming of school buildings, major portions of buildings (*e.g.*, media center, auditorium, gymnasium, etc.) and/or school grounds is the responsibility of the New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”). In fulfilling this responsibility, the Board will consider community preferences. The decision will be based upon the Board’s assessment of the special significance of a name or, in the case of an individual, exceptional service to the children of New Milford. Such recognition requires substantial support and comprehensive review.

The Board shall establish a committee, consistent with Board Policy 9014—Board Committees, to expedite and facilitate the Board’s decision regarding whether and how to name a new building or rename a building, major portions of a building, or school grounds. The Board shall seek the advice of the Superintendent before establishing or dissolving a committee. Such committee shall be established and dissolved by Board vote, and the members of the committee shall be appointed by the Board. The ad hoc committee shall be comprised of a minimum of two and a maximum of three Board members and shall include a building administrator, faculty, parents/guardians, community members, and if appropriate, students. The committee shall be appointed as soon as possible after there is a need to consider naming or renaming a building, major components of a building or school grounds and it shall be dissolved when the report has been accepted by the Board or at the next annual organizational meeting or upon a motion for dissolution passed by a majority vote, or upon completion of the assigned task whichever comes first.

The Board will establish the scope and schedule of the committee’s work, which shall include, but not be limited to, recommending potential names for consideration by the Board and any criteria the Board wishes to be considered in the process.

The general procedure for selecting a name will be as follows:

1. The ad-hoc committee will be responsible for receiving and screening school name suggestions.
2. The committee shall follow the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act as required by state law. In addition, opportunities for public input must be made available prior to the committee's recommendation to the Board.

3. The committee shall propose a list of not more than five (5) names to the Board for Board consideration. It shall present its recommendation to the Board in accordance with Board bylaws and policies.

It shall be the policy of the Board to consider the naming of the school facilities using the following criteria:

1. If any of the committee's recommendations reflect the name of an individual, such individual must be shown to have had a broad-based, long-term impact on the New Milford Public Schools (the "District") and its community. Individuals to be considered shall (A) have served in the continuous employ of the New Milford Board of Education for an extended period, usually in excess of ten years, with the name being submitted after the individual's separation from compensated service for a minimum period of one year, or (B) be a non-employee of the New Milford Board of Education who has made an exceptional contribution to the children of New Milford for an extended period or (C) after a historically significant figure.
2. It shall be the general policy to name schools and school facilities for persons who have attained prominence locally and nationally, or in the fields of education, science, art, statesmanship, political science, or military achievement; early pioneers of the community of the state of Connecticut; outstanding presidents of the United States of America; or geographical landmarks.
3. Where appropriate, the Board may consider naming portions of its facilities and other areas under its control for individuals and/or organizations that, through their significant endorsement, have made possible the construction of said facilities or other areas.
4. If the school is named after a person, preference shall be given to names of (deceased) persons who have made a significant contribution to education.
5. The Board retains the right to make the final determination in the naming of school buildings, major portions of buildings, or school grounds. This policy notwithstanding, it is the intent of the Board that the naming of major portions of buildings and school grounds occur infrequently and on a limited basis.
6. The Board will consider renaming a school building, major portions of a building, or school grounds only after determining that a current name is no longer appropriate, as indicated by 2/3 affirmative votes of the membership of the Board of Education.

Approved:  
Revised:

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS  
New Milford, Connecticut

**Note: This policy was revised to update the appeal procedures to ensure consistency across all model policies related to discrimination and harassment. At a minimum, boards of education should provide an appeals process that is the same as it offers in comparable proceedings. Therefore, we have updated our model policies related to discrimination and harassment to ensure the appeal procedures are comparable across all police. Further, technical edits have been made throughout the policy and regulations.**

Deleted language has a ~~strike through~~ and new language is highlighted in **yellow**.

**Series 4000  
Personnel**

**4118.112  
4218.112**

**POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  
REGARDING EMPLOYEES AND  
SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 AND  
TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990**

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”) prohibits discrimination against individuals with a disability in any program receiving Federal financial assistance. Similarly, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“Title II” or “ADA”) prohibits discrimination against individuals with a disability by state and local governments. To be protected under Section 504 and the ADA (“collectively, “Section 504/ADA”), an individual must (1) have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities; (2) have a record of such an impairment; or (3) be regarded as having such an impairment.

In order to fulfill its obligation under Section 504/ADA, the New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) recognizes a responsibility to avoid discrimination in policies and practices regarding its personnel, students, parents/guardians and members of the public who participate in school sponsored programs **of the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”)**. In this regard, the Board prohibits discrimination against any person with a disability in any of the services, programs or activities of the ~~school system~~ **District**.

Employees who are interested in requesting or discussing reasonable accommodations for a disability should contact **the Section 504/ADA Coordinator:**

**Teresa Kavanagh  
Director of Human Resources  
25SunnyValleyRoad, Suite A  
New Milford, CT 06776  
Telephone Number: 860-210-2200  
[kavanaght@newmilfordps.org](mailto:kavanaght@newmilfordps.org)**

Any employee may file an internal grievance/complaint regarding discrimination on the basis of disability by or within the ~~district~~ **District** by utilizing the grievance/complaint procedures outlined in the Board’s Administrative Regulations Regarding Employees and Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of Americans with Disabilities Act, and/or may file a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education (“OCR”):

Office for Civil Rights, Boston Office  
U.S. Department of Education  
8<sup>th</sup> Floor  
5 Post Office Square  
Boston, MA 02109-3921  
(617) 289-0111

Employees may also file a complaint regarding employment discrimination on the basis of disability with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, Boston Area Office, John F. Kennedy Federal Building, 15 New Sudbury Street, Room 475, Boston, MA 02203-0506 TELEPHONE NUMBER (telephone number: 800-669-4000).

Employees may also file a complaint with the Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, 450 Columbus Blvd., Hartford, CT 06103-1835 TELEPHONE NUMBER (telephone number: 800-477-5737).

Anyone who wishes to file a grievance/complaint with the ~~district~~ District, or who has questions or concerns about this policy, should contact the Section 504/ADA Coordinator ~~for the New Milford Public Schools at phone number 860-210-2200~~ at the contact information provided above.

Legal References:

29 U.S.C. §§ 705, 794  
34 C.F.R. Part 104  
42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.  
28 C.F.R. Part 35

Approved: August 15, 2023  
Revised:

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS  
New Milford, Connecticut

**ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING EMPLOYEES  
AND SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973  
AND TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990**

New Milford Board of Education Section 504/ADA Grievance/Complaint  
Procedures Regarding Discrimination Against Employees

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”) and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“Title II” or “ADA”) (collectively, “Section 504/ADA”) prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability. For the purposes of Section 504/ADA, the term “disability” with respect to an individual means: (a) a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities of such individual; (b) a record of such an impairment; or (c) being regarded as having such an impairment.

**I. Definitions**

**Major life activities:** include, but are not limited to, caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, sitting, reaching, lifting, bending, speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating, interacting with others, and working. A major life activity also includes the operation of a major bodily function, such as the functions of the immune system, special sense organs and skin, normal cell growth, and digestive, genitourinary, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, cardiovascular, endocrine, hemic, lymphatic, musculoskeletal, and reproductive systems. The operation of a major bodily function includes the operation of an individual organ within a body system.

**Mitigating measures:** include, but are not limited to, (a) medication, medical supplies, equipment, appliances, low-vision devices (defined as devices that magnify, enhance, or otherwise augment a visual image, but not including ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses), prosthetics including limbs and devices, hearing aid(s) and cochlear implant(s) or other implantable hearing devices, mobility devices, oxygen therapy equipment and supplies; (b) use of assistive technology; (c) reasonable modifications or auxiliary aids or services; (d) learned behavioral or adaptive neurological modifications; or (e) psychotherapy, behavioral therapy, or physical therapy.

**Physical or mental impairment:** (a) any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or anatomical loss affecting one or more of the following body systems, such as: neurological, musculoskeletal, special sense organs, respiratory (including speech organs), cardiovascular, reproductive, digestive, genitourinary, immune, circulatory, hemic, lymphatic, skin, and endocrine; (b) any mental or psychological disorder, such as intellectual disability, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disability; or (c) an impairment that is episodic or in remission if it would substantially limit a major life activity when active. Physical or mental impairment includes, but is not limited to, contagious and noncontagious diseases and conditions such as the following: orthopedic, visual, speech, and hearing impairments, and cerebral palsy, epilepsy, muscular dystrophy, multiple sclerosis, cancer, heart disease, diabetes, intellectual disability, emotional illness, dyslexia and other specific learning disabilities, Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder, Human Immunodeficiency Virus infection (whether symptomatic or asymptomatic), tuberculosis, drug addiction, and alcoholism.

## II. Procedures for Grievances/Complaints Alleging Discrimination on the Basis of Disability

- A. Any eligible person, including any student, parent/guardian, staff member or other employee who feels that ~~he/she has~~ **they have** been discriminated against on the basis of disability (including differential treatment, harassment and retaliation) may submit a written complaint to the ~~district's designated~~ Section 504/ADA Coordinator **for the New Milford Public Schools (the "District")** (see contact information below) within thirty (30) school days of the alleged occurrence.
- B. Timely reporting of complaints facilitates the prompt investigation and resolution of such complaints. If a complaint is filed relating to alleged discrimination occurring more than thirty (30) school days after the alleged occurrence, the ability of the ~~New Milford Public Schools (the "District")~~ **to** investigate the allegations may be limited by the passage of time. Therefore, complaints received after thirty (30) school days of the alleged occurrence shall be investigated to the extent possible, given the passage of time and the impact on available information, witnesses and memory. If a complaint is made verbally, the individual taking the complaint will reduce the complaint to writing. Individuals wishing to make a complaint about discrimination against students on the basis of disability should be referred to the district's Section 504/ADA policies and regulations regarding students.
- C. Retaliation against any individual who complains pursuant to the Board's policy and regulations listed herein is strictly prohibited. The district will not tolerate any retaliation that occurs as a result of the good faith reporting or complaint of disability-based discrimination or as a result of an individual's participation or cooperating in the investigation of a complaint. The ~~district~~ **District** will take necessary actions to prevent retaliation as a result of filing a complaint or the participation in an investigation of a complaint.

***[NOTE: Districts should note that Section 504 does not provide a statute of limitations for filing grievances/complaints with the district. We recommend that districts encourage prompt reporting by suggesting that complaints be filed within thirty (30) school days in order to facilitate timely resolution of potential disputes.]***

- D. If the Section 504/ADA Coordinator is the subject of the complaint, the complaint should be submitted directly to the Superintendent who may conduct the investigation or appoint a designee to conduct the investigation in accordance with these procedures. If the Superintendent is the subject of the complaint, the ~~District~~ **Board** shall designate an appropriate party to conduct the investigation in accordance with these procedures.
- E. Complaints will be investigated promptly within timeframes identified below. Timeframes may be extended as needed given the complexity of the investigation, availability of individuals with relevant information and other extenuating circumstances. Confidentiality will be maintained by all persons involved in the investigation to the extent possible.
- F. The complaint should contain the following information:
1. The name of the complainant;

2. The date of the complaint;
3. The date(s) of the alleged discrimination;
4. The names of any witnesses or individuals relevant to the complaint;
5. A detailed statement describing the circumstances in which the alleged discrimination occurred; and
6. The remedy requested.

However, all complaints will be investigated to the extent possible, even if such information is not included in the complaint. In such circumstances, additional information may be requested by the investigator as part of the investigation process.

- G. Upon receipt of the complaint, the individual investigating the complaint shall:
1. Provide a copy of the written complaint to the Superintendent of Schools;
  2. Meet separately with the complainant and the respondent within ten (10) school days to discuss the nature of the complaint, identify individuals the complainant and respondent believe have relevant information, and obtain any relevant documents the complainant may have;
  3. Provide the complainant and respondent with a copy of the applicable Board Section 504/ADA Policy and these administrative regulations;
  4. Consider whether and which interim measures might be appropriate for an alleged victim and the respondent pending the outcome of the District's investigation;
  5. Conduct an investigation of the factual basis of the complaint that is adequate, reliable, and impartial, including conducting interviews with individuals with information and review of documents relevant to the complaint;
  6. Maintain confidentiality to the extent practicable throughout the investigative process in accordance with state and federal law;
  7. Communicate the outcome of the investigation in writing to the complainant, and to the respondent (to the extent permitted by state and federal confidentiality requirements), within fifteen (15) school days from the date the complaint was received by the Section 504/ADA Coordinator or Superintendent. The written notice shall include a finding as to whether the complaint was substantiated and if so, shall identify how the District will remedy any identified violations of Section 504/ADA. The investigator may extend this deadline for no more than fifteen (15) additional school days if needed to complete the investigation. The complainant and the respondent shall be notified of any such extension;

8. If a complaint is made during summer recess, the complaint will be reviewed and addressed as quickly as possible given the availability of staff and/or other individuals who may have information relevant to the complaint, and no later than fifteen (15) school days after the start of the following school year. The complainant and the respondent will receive notice if the investigation has been impeded by the summer recess, and interim measures may be implemented as necessary (see sub-paragraph 4);
9. Ensure that appropriate corrective action is taken whenever allegations are verified. When allegations are verified, ensure that measures to remedy the effects of the discrimination and prevent its recurrence are appropriately considered, and offered, when appropriate. Corrective action should include steps to avoid continuing discrimination;
10. In the event the investigator concludes that there is no violation of Section 504/ADA, the District may attempt to resolve the complainant's ongoing concerns, if possible.

H. ~~If the complainant or respondent is not satisfied with the findings and conclusions of the investigation, the appealing party may request review and reconsideration of the conclusion of the complaint within thirty (30) days of receipt of the written outcome. In requesting review, the appealing party must submit the complaint, the written outcome of the complaint, and explain why he/she believes the factual information relied upon by the investigator was incomplete, the analysis of the facts were incorrect, and/or the appropriate legal standard was not applied, and how the information would change the investigator's determination in the case. Failure to provide all such information may result in the denial of the review.~~

H. After receiving the written notice of the outcome, parties shall have ten (10) school days to submit a formal written statement of appeal, if they so choose, to the Superintendent of Schools challenging the outcome of the investigation and explaining the basis for appeal.

~~Upon review of a written request from the appealing party, the Superintendent shall review the investigative results of the investigator and determine if further action and/or investigation is warranted. Such action may include consultation with the investigator and other relevant witnesses, a meeting with appropriate individuals to attempt to resolve the complaint or a decision affirming or overruling the investigator's conclusions or findings. The Superintendent shall provide written notice to the appealing party and other party of his/her decision within ten (10) school days following the receipt of the written request for review. When a written request for review is received during summer recess, the Superintendent conduct the review as quickly as possible given the availability of staff and/or other individuals who may have information relevant to the review, and no later than ten (10) school days after the start of the following school year. The Superintendent's decision shall be final.~~

Upon receipt of an appeal, the Superintendent shall appoint a decisionmaker(s) for the appeal, who may be the Superintendent or designee. The decisionmaker(s) for the

appeal will provide the appealing party's written statement to the non-appealing party. The non-appealing party will then have ten (10) school days to submit to the decision-maker(s) for the appeal a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome of the investigation.

The decisionmaker(s) for the appeal shall review the evidence and the information presented by the parties and determine if further action and/or investigation is warranted. Such action may include consultation with the investigator(s) and the parties, a meeting with appropriate individuals to attempt to resolve the complaint, or a decision affirming or overruling the written outcome. Generally, a party's disagreement with the outcome of the investigation, alone, will not be basis for further action. The decisionmaker(s) for the appeal will attempt to issue written notice of the outcome of the appeal to the parties within thirty (30) school days of receipt of all written statements from the parties.

### III. The Section 504/ADA Coordinator for ~~this district~~ **the District** is:

**Teresa Kavanagh**  
**Director of Human Resources**  
**25SunnyValleyRoad, Suite A**  
**New Milford, CT 06776**  
**Telephone Number: 860-210-2200**  
[kavanaght@newmilfordps.org](mailto:kavanaght@newmilfordps.org)

### IV. Complaints to Federal or State Agencies

At any time, the complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights, 8<sup>th</sup> Floor, 5 Post Office Square, Suite 900, Boston, MA 02109-0111 (~~TELEPHONE NUMBER~~ **telephone number**: (617) 289-0111); <http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/howto.html>. Employees may also file a complaint regarding employment discrimination on the basis of disability with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, Boston Area Office, John F. Kennedy Federal Building, 15 New Sudbury Street, Room 475, Boston, MA 02203-0506 (~~TELEPHONE NUMBER~~ **telephone number**: 800-669-4000), or the Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, 450 Columbus Blvd., Hartford, CT 06103-1835 (telephone number: 800-477-5737).

Regulation approved: August 15, 2023

**NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS  
SECTION 504/ADA DISCRIMINATION  
GRIEVANCE/COMPLAINT FORM FOR NON-STUDENT**

(This form is intended to be used if an individual has grievance/complaint under Section 504/ADA alleging discrimination on the basis of a disability).

1. Name of Complainant: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

2. Contact Information for Complainant:

\_\_\_\_\_  
(Address)

\_\_\_\_\_  
(Home Tel. #)

\_\_\_\_\_  
(Cell # or Work #)

3. Name of Covered Individual: \_\_\_\_\_

4. Address of Covered Individual (if different from above):

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

5. Relationship to School (e.g., position, visitor, parent) (if applicable):

\_\_\_\_\_

6. Please describe the nature of your complaint:

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

7. Proposed resolution or corrective action you wish to see taken with regard to the stated issues:

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_

**Note: State law requires boards of education to conduct employment history reviews before offering employment to an applicant for a position, including any position that is contracted for, if such applicant would have direct student contact. In conducting this review, boards of education are required to send an Educational Employer Verification form to an applicant’s previous employers. Among other information, the form requests an employer to disclose whether the applicant (1) has been the subject of an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct for which there is an investigation pending with any employer, state agency, or municipal police department or which has been substantiated; (2) was disciplined or asked to resign from employment or resigned from or otherwise separated from any employment while an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to a substantiation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct; or (3) has ever had a professional or occupational license, certificate, authorization or permit suspended or revoked or has ever surrendered such a license, certificate, authorization or permit while an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to a substantiation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct. Public Act 24-41 amends this requirement and specifies that an applicants’ previous employers are not required to disclose information about a substantiated allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct if the substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to the Department of Children and Families (“DCF”). This policy has been revised in light of that change. Also, this policy has been revised to clarify a board of education’s responsibilities under the Fair Credit Reporting Act when deciding whether to take adverse actions against prospective employees.**

New language is highlighted in yellow.

<b>Series 4000</b>	<b>4112.5</b>
<b>Personnel</b>	<b>4212.5</b>

### **EMPLOYMENT AND STUDENT TEACHER BACKGROUND CHECKS**

As set forth below, each applicant for a position with the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”), and each student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program with the District, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience in the District (collectively referred to as “applicants”), shall be asked to provide in writing: (1) whether the applicant has ever been convicted of a crime; (2) whether there are any criminal charges pending against the applicant at the time of the application and, if charges are pending, to state the charges and the court in which such charges are pending; and (3) whether the applicant is included on the Abuse and Neglect Registry of the Connecticut Department of Children and Families (“DCF”) (the “Registry”).

Applicants shall not be required to disclose any arrest, criminal charge or conviction that has been erased. An employment application form that contains any question concerning the criminal history of the applicant shall contain the following notice, in clear and conspicuous language:

**Pursuant to section 31-51i(d) of the Connecticut General Statutes, the applicant is hereby notified that (1) the applicant is not required to disclose the existence of any erased criminal history record information, (2) erased criminal history record information are records pertaining to a finding of delinquency or that a child was a member of a family with service needs, an adjudication as a youthful offender, a criminal charge that has been dismissed or nolle, a criminal charge for which the person has been found not guilty or a conviction for which the person received an absolute pardon or criminal records that are erased pursuant to statute or by other operation of law, and (3) any person with erased criminal history record information shall be deemed to have never been arrested within the meaning of the general statutes with respect to the proceedings so erased and may so swear under oath.**

In addition, the District shall conduct an employment history check for each applicant for a position, as set forth below.

For the purposes of this policy:

**“Sexual misconduct”** means any verbal, nonverbal, written, or electronic communication, or any other act directed toward or with a student that is designed to establish a sexual relationship with the student, including a sexual invitation, dating or soliciting a date, engaging in sexual dialog, making sexually suggestive comments, self-disclosure or physical exposure of a sexual or erotic nature, and any other sexual, indecent, or erotic contact with a student.

**“Abuse or neglect”** means abuse or neglect as described in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 46b-120, and includes any violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-70 (sexual assault in the first degree), 53a-70a (aggravated sexual assault in the first degree), 53a-71 (sexual assault in the second degree), 53a-72a (sexual assault in the third degree), 53a-72b (sexual assault in the third degree with a firearm), or 53a-73a (sexual assault in the fourth degree).

**“Former employer”** means any person, firm, business, educational institution, nonprofit agency, corporation, limited liability company, the state, any political subdivision of the state, any governmental agency, or any other entity that such applicant was employed by during any of the previous twenty years prior to applying for a position with a local or regional board of education.

#### I. Employment History Check Procedures

- A. The District shall not offer employment to an applicant for a position, including any position that is contracted for, if such applicant would have direct student contact, prior to the District:
  1. Requiring the applicant:
    - a. to list the name, address, and telephone number of each current employer or former employer (please note the definition of

“former employer” above, including the applicable twenty year reporting period) during any of the previous twenty years, if:

- (i) such current or former employer is/was a local or regional board of education, council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or a supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, and/or
  - (ii) the applicant’s employment with such current or former employer caused the applicant to have contact with children.
- b. to submit a written authorization that
- (i) consents to and authorizes disclosure by the employers listed under paragraph I.A.1.a of this policy of the information requested under paragraph I.A.2 of this policy and the release of related records by such employers,
  - (ii) consents to and authorizes disclosure by the Connecticut State Department of Education (the “Department”) of the information requested under paragraph I.A.3 of this policy and the release of related records by the Department, and
  - (iii) releases those employers and the Department from liability that may arise from such disclosure or release of records pursuant to paragraphs I.A.2 or I.A.3 of this policy; and
- c. to submit a written statement of whether the applicant
- (i) has been the subject of an abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct investigation by any employer, state agency or municipal police department, unless the investigation resulted in a finding that all allegations were unsubstantiated,
  - (ii) has ever been disciplined or asked to resign from employment or resigned from or otherwise separated from any employment while an allegation of abuse or neglect was pending or under investigation by DCF, or an allegation of sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation or due to an allegation substantiated pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101g of abuse or neglect, or of sexual misconduct or a conviction for abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct, or

- (iii) has ever had a professional or occupational license or certificate suspended or revoked or has ever surrendered such a license or certificate while an allegation of abuse or neglect was pending or under investigation by DCF or an investigation of sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to an allegation substantiated by DCF of abuse or neglect or of sexual misconduct or a conviction for abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct;
- 2. Conducting a review of the employment history of the applicant by contacting those employers listed by the applicant under paragraph I.A.1.a of this policy. Such review shall be conducted using a form developed by the Department, which shall request the following:
  - a. the dates employment of the applicant, and
  - b. a statement as to whether the employer has knowledge that the applicant:
    - (i) was the subject of an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct for which there is an investigation pending with any employer, state agency, or municipal police department or which has been substantiated, unless such substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to DCF;
    - (ii) was disciplined or asked to resign from employment or resigned from or otherwise separated from any employment while an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to a substantiation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct, unless such substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to DCF; or
    - (iii) has ever had a professional or occupational license, certificate, authorization or permit suspended or revoked or has ever surrendered such a license, certificate, authorization or permit while an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to a substantiation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct, unless such substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to DCF. Such review may be conducted telephonically or through written communication. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, not later than five (5) business days after the District receives a request for such information about an employee or former

employee, the District shall respond with such information. The District may request more information concerning any response made by a current or former employer for information about an applicant, and, notwithstanding subsection (g), such employer shall respond not later than five (5) business days after receiving such request.

3. Requesting information from the Department concerning:
  - a. the eligibility status for employment of any applicant for a position requiring a certificate, authorization or permit,
  - b. whether the Department has knowledge that a finding has been substantiated by DCF pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101g of abuse or neglect or of sexual misconduct against the applicant and any information concerning such a finding, and
  - c. whether the Department has received notification that the applicant has been convicted of a crime or of criminal charges pending against the applicant and any information concerning such charges.
- B. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, if the District receives information that an applicant for a position with or an employee of the District has been disciplined for a finding of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct, it shall notify the Department of such information.
- C. The District shall not employ an applicant for a position involving direct student contact who does not comply with the provisions of paragraph I.A.1 of this policy.
- D. The District may employ or contract with an applicant on a temporary basis for a period not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days, pending the District's review of information received under this section, provided:
  1. The applicant complied with paragraph I.A.1 of this policy;
  2. The District has no knowledge of information pertaining to the applicant that would disqualify the applicant from employment with the District; and
  3. The applicant affirms that the applicant is not disqualified from employment with the District.

- E. The District shall not enter into a collective bargaining agreement, an employment contract, an agreement for resignation or termination, a severance agreement, or any other contract or agreement or take any action that:
1. Has the effect of suppressing information relating to an investigation of a report of suspected abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct by a current or former employee;
  2. Affects the ability of the District to report suspected abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct to appropriate authorities; or
  3. Requires the District to expunge information about an allegation or a finding of suspected abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct from any documents maintained by the District, unless, after investigation, such allegation is dismissed or found to be false.
- F. The District shall not offer employment to a person as a substitute teacher, unless such person and the District comply with the provisions of paragraph I.A.1 of this policy. The District shall determine which such persons are employable as substitute teachers and maintain a list of such persons. The District shall not hire any person as a substitute teacher who is not on such list. Such person shall remain on such list as long as such person is continuously employed by the District as a substitute teacher, as described in paragraph III.B.2 of this policy, provided the District does not have any knowledge of a reason that such person should be removed from such list.
- G. In the case of an applicant who is a contractor, the contractor shall require any employee with such contractor who would be in a position involving direct student contact to supply to such contractor all the information required of an applicant under paragraphs I.A.1.a and I.A.1.c of this policy and a written authorization under paragraph I.A.1.b of this policy. Such contractor shall contact any current or former employer (please note the definition of “former employer” above, including the applicable twenty year reporting period) of such employee that was a local or regional board of education, council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or a supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, or if the employee’s employment with such current or former employer caused the employee to have contact with children, and request, either telephonically or through written communication, any information concerning whether there was a finding of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct against such employee. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, such employer shall report to the contractor any such finding, either telephonically or through written communication. If the contractor receives any information indicating such a finding or otherwise receives any information indicating such a finding or otherwise has knowledge of such a finding, the contractor shall, notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, immediately forward such information to the District, either telephonically or through written

communication. If the District receives such information, it shall determine whether such employee of the contractor may work in a position involving direct student contact at any school in the District. No determination by the District that any such employee of the contractor shall not work under any such contract in any such position shall constitute a breach of such contract.

- H. Any applicant/employee who knowingly provides false information or knowingly fails to disclose information required in subdivision (1) of subsection (A) of this section shall be subject to discipline by the District that may include:
  - 1. denial of employment, or
  - 2. termination of the contract of a certified employee, in accordance with the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-151, or
  - 3. termination of a non-certified employee in accordance with applicable law and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreement, contract or District policy.
- I. If the District provides information in accordance with paragraph I.A.2 or I.G of this policy, the District shall be immune from criminal and civil liability, provided the District did not knowingly supply false information.
- J. Notwithstanding the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-151c and subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i, the District shall provide, upon request by another local or regional board of education, governing council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or supervisory agent of a nonpublic school for the purposes of an inquiry pursuant to paragraphs I.A.2 or I.G of this policy or to the Commissioner of Education pursuant to paragraph I.B of this policy any information that the District has concerning a finding of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct by a subject of any such inquiry.
- K. Prior to offering employment to an applicant, the District shall make a documented good faith effort to contact each current and any former employer (please note the definition of “former employer” employer above, including the applicable twenty year reporting period) of the applicant that was a local or regional board of education, governing council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, or if the applicant’s employment with such current or former employer caused the applicant to have contact with children in order to obtain information and recommendations that may be relevant to the applicant’s fitness for employment. Such effort, however, shall not be construed to require more than three telephonic requests made on three separate days.
- L. The District shall not offer employment to any applicant who had any previous employment contract terminated by a local or regional board of education, council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or

a supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, or who resigned from such employment, if the person has been convicted of a violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101a, when an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual assault has been substantiated.

## II. DCF Registry Checks

Prior to hiring any person for a position with the District, and before a student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program in the District, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience with the District, begins such student teaching experience, the District shall require such applicant or student to submit to a records check of information maintained on the Registry concerning the applicant.

The District shall request information from the Registry promptly, and in any case no later than thirty (30) calendar days from the date of employment. Registry checks will be processed according to the following procedure:

- A. No later than ten (10) calendar days after the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee has notified a job applicant of a decision to offer employment to the applicant, or as soon thereafter as practicable, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will either obtain the information from the Registry or, if the applicant's consent is required to access the information, will supply the applicant with the release form utilized by DCF for obtaining information from the Registry.
- B. If consent is required to access the Registry, no later than ten (10) calendar days after the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee has provided the successful job applicant with the form, the applicant must submit the signed form to DCF, with a copy to the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee. Failure of the applicant to submit the signed form to DCF within such ten-day period, without good cause, will be grounds for the withdrawal of the offer of employment.
- C. Upon receipt of Registry information indicating previously undisclosed information concerning abuse or neglect investigations concerning the successful job applicant/employee, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will notify the affected applicant/employee in writing of the results of the Registry check and will provide an opportunity for the affected applicant/employee to respond to the results of the Registry check.
- D. If notification is received by the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee that that the applicant is listed as a perpetrator of abuse or neglect on the Registry, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee shall provide the applicant with an opportunity to be heard regarding the results of the Registry check. If warranted by the results of the Registry check and any additional information provided by the applicant, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee shall revoke the offer of employment and/or terminate

the applicant's employment if the applicant has already commenced working for the District.

### III. Criminal Records Check Procedure

- A. Each person hired by the District shall be required to submit to state and national criminal records checks within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of employment. Each student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience with the District, shall be required to submit to state and national criminal records checks within sixty (60) calendar days from the date such student begins to perform such student teaching experience. Record checks will be processed according to the following procedure:\*
1. No later than five (5) calendar days after the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee has notified a job applicant of a decision to hire the applicant, or as soon thereafter as practicable, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will provide the applicant with a packet containing all documents and materials necessary for the applicant to be fingerprinted by the local police department of the CT State Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection. This packet shall also contain all documents and materials necessary for the police department to submit the completed fingerprints to the State Police Bureau of Identification for the processing of state and national criminal records checks. The Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will also provide each applicant with the following notifications before the applicant obtains the applicant's fingerprints: (1) Agency Privacy Requirements for Noncriminal Justice Applicants; (2) Noncriminal Justice Applicant's Privacy Rights; (3) and the Federal Bureau of Investigation, United States Department of Justice Privacy Act Statement.
  2. No later than ten (10) calendar days after the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee has provided the successful job applicant with the fingerprinting packet, the applicant must arrange to be fingerprinted by the local police department or the CT State Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection. Failure of the applicant to have the applicant's fingerprints taken within such ten-day period, without good cause, will be grounds for the withdrawal of the offer of employment.
  3. Any person for whom criminal records checks are required to be performed pursuant to this policy must pay all fees and costs associated with the fingerprinting process and/or the submission or processing of the requests for criminal records checks. Fees and costs associated with the fingerprinting process and the submission and process of requests are waived for student teachers, in accordance with state law.

4. Upon receipt of a criminal records check indicating a previously undisclosed conviction, the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee will notify the affected applicant/employee in writing of the results of the record check and will provide an opportunity for the affected applicant/employee to respond to the results of the criminal records check. The affected applicant/employee may notify the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee in writing within five (5) calendar days that the affected applicant/employee will challenge such individual's criminal history records check. Upon written notification to the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee of such a challenge, the affected applicant/employee shall have ten (10) calendar days to provide the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee with necessary documentation regarding the affected applicant/employee's record challenge. The Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee may grant an extension to the preceding ten-day period during which the affected applicant/employee may provide such documentation for good cause shown.
5. Decisions regarding the effect of a conviction upon an applicant/employee, whether disclosed or undisclosed by the applicant/employee, will be made on a case-by-case basis. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the falsification or omission of any information on a job application or in a job interview, including but not limited to information concerning criminal convictions or pending criminal charges, shall be grounds for disqualification from consideration for employment or discharge from employment.
6. Notwithstanding anything in paragraph III.A.5 of this policy, above, no decision to deny employment or withdraw an offer of employment on the basis of an applicant/employee's criminal history record shall be made without affording the applicant/employee the opportunities set forth in paragraph III.A.4 of this policy, above.

**B. Criminal Records Check for Substitute Teachers:**

A substitute teacher who is hired by the District must submit to state and national criminal history records checks according to the procedures outlined above, subject to the following:

1. If the state and national criminal history records checks for a substitute teacher have been completed within one year prior to the date the District hired the substitute teacher, and if the substitute teacher arranged for such prior criminal history records checks to be forwarded to the Superintendent or the Superintendent's designee, then the substitute teacher will not be required to submit to another criminal history records check at the time of such hire.

2. If a substitute teacher submitted to state and national criminal history records checks upon being hired by the District, then the substitute teacher will not be required to submit to another criminal history records check so long as the substitute teacher is continuously employed by the District, that is, employed for at least one day of each school year, by the District, provided a substitute teacher is subjected to such checks at least once every five years.

#### IV. Sex Offender Registry Checks

District personnel shall cross-reference the Connecticut Department of Public Safety's sexual offender registry prior to hiring any new employee and before a student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience with the District, begins such student teaching experience. Registration as a sexual offender constitutes grounds for denial of employment opportunities and opportunities to perform student teaching experiences in the District.

#### V. Credit Checks

The District may also ask a prospective employee for a credit report for employment for certain District positions, where the District's receipt of a credit report is substantially related to the employee's potential job. "Substantially related to the current or potential job" is defined to mean "the information contained in the credit report is related to the position for which the employee or prospective employee who is the subject of the report is being evaluated because of the position." Prior to asking for a credit report, the District will determine whether the position falls within one of the categories as described in this paragraph. The position must: (1) be a managerial position which involves setting the direction or control of the District; (2) involve access to employees' personal or financial information; (3) involve a fiduciary responsibility to the District, including, but not limited to, the authority to issue payments, collect debts, transfer money or enter into contracts; (4) provide an expense account or District debit or credit card; or (5) involve access to the District's nonfinancial assets valued at two thousand five dollars or more.

When a credit report will be requested as part of the employment process, the District will provide written notification to the prospective employee regarding the use of credit checks. That notification must be provided in a document separate from the employment application. The notification must state that the District may use the information in the consumer credit report to make decisions related to the individual's employment. The District will obtain **written, signed** consent before performing the credit or other background checks.

If the District intends to take an action adverse to a potential employee based on the results of a credit report, the District must provide the prospective employee with a copy of the report on which the District relied in making the adverse decision, as well as a copy of "A Summary of Your Rights Under the Fair Credit Reporting Act," which should be provided by the company that provides the results of the credit check. The District will **give the potential employee a reasonable amount of time, i.e., at least five days, to dispute any of the information in the report prior to making any final employment decision.**

If an adverse action is taken based on information from the report, the District will notify the prospective employee either orally, in writing or via electronic means that the adverse action was taken based on the information in the consumer report. That notice must include the name, address and phone number of the consumer reporting company that supplied the credit report; a statement that the company that supplied the report did not make the decision to take the unfavorable action and cannot provide specific reasons for the District's actions; and a notice of the person's right to dispute the accuracy or completeness of any information the consumer reporting company furnished, and to get an additional free report from the company if the person asks for it within sixty (60) calendar days.

#### VI. Notice of Conviction

If, at any time, the District receives notice of a conviction of a crime by a person holding a certificate, authorization or permit issued by the State Board of Education, the District shall send such notice to the State Board of Education. In complying with this requirement, the District shall not disseminate the results of any national criminal history records check.

#### VII. School Nurses

School nurses or nurse practitioners appointed by, or under contract with, the District shall also be required to submit to a criminal history records check in accordance with the procedures outlined above.

#### VIII. Personal Online Accounts

For purposes of this policy, "personal online account" means any online account that is used by an employee or applicant exclusively for personal purposes and unrelated to any business purpose of the District, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, social media and retail-based Internet web sites. "Personal online account" does not include any account created, maintained, used or accessed by an employee or applicant for a business purpose of the District.

- A. During the course of an employment check, the District may not:
1. request or require that an applicant provide the District with a user name and password, password or any other authentication means for accessing a personal online account;
  2. request or require that an applicant authenticate or access a personal online account in the presence of District personnel; or
  3. require that an applicant invite a supervisor employed by the District or accept an invitation from a supervisor employed by the District to join a group affiliated with any personal online account of the applicant.

- B. The District may request or require that an applicant provide the District with a user name and password, password or any other authentication means for accessing:
  - 1. any account or service provided by District or by virtue of the applicant's employment relationship with the District or that the applicant uses for the District's business purposes, or
  - 2. any electronic communications device supplied or paid for, in whole or in part, by the District.
  
- C. In accordance with applicable law, the District maintains the right to require an applicant to allow the District to access the applicant's personal online account, without disclosing the user name and password, password or other authentication means for accessing such personal online account, for the purpose of:
  - 1. conducting an investigation for the purpose of ensuring compliance with applicable state or federal laws, regulatory requirements or prohibitions against work-related employee misconduct based on the receipt of specific information about activity on an applicant's personal online account; or
  - 2. conducting an investigation based on the receipt of specific information about an applicant's unauthorized transfer of the District's proprietary information, confidential information or financial data to or from a personal online account operated by an applicant or other source.

IX. Policy Inapplicable to Certain Individuals

This policy shall not apply to:

- A. A student employed by the District who attends a District school.
  
- B. A person employed by the District as a teacher for a noncredit adult class or adult education activity, as defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-67, who is not required to hold a teaching certificate pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-145b for such position.

X. Falsification of Records

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this policy, the falsification or omission of any information on a job application or in a job interview, including but not limited to information concerning abuse or neglect investigations or pending criminal applications, shall be grounds for disqualification from consideration for employment or discharge from employment.

Legal References: Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-212

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221d

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222c

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-40x

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51i

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51tt

Public Act 24-41, “An Act Concerning Educator Certification, Teachers, Paraeducators and Mandated Reporter Requirements.”

Elementary and Secondary Education Act, reauthorized as the Every Student Succeeds Act, Pub. L. 114-95, codified at 20 U.S.C. § 1001 *et seq.*

Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681 *et seq.*

Approved: August 15, 2023  
Revised:

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS  
New Milford, Connecticut

## Agency Privacy Requirements for Noncriminal Justice Applicants

Authorized governmental and non-governmental agencies/officials that conduct a national fingerprint-based criminal history record check on an applicant for a noncriminal justice purpose (such as employment or a license, immigration or naturalization matter, security clearance, or adoption) are obligated to ensure the applicant is provided certain notices and that the results of the check are handled in a manner that protects the applicant's privacy. All notices must be provided in writing.<sup>1</sup> These obligations are pursuant to the Privacy Act of 1974, Title 5, United States Code (U.S.C.), Section 552a, and Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Section 50.12, among other authorities.

- Officials must ensure that each applicant receives an adequate written FBI Privacy Act Statement (dated 2013 or later) when the applicant submits the applicant's fingerprints and associated personal information.<sup>2</sup>
- Officials must advise all applicants in writing that procedures for obtaining a change, correction, or update of an FBI criminal history record are set forth at 28 CFR 16.34. Information regarding this process may be found at <https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/identity-history-summary-checks> and <https://www.edo.cjis.gov>.
- Officials must provide the applicant the opportunity to complete or challenge the accuracy of the information in the FBI criminal history record.
- Officials should not deny the employment, license, or other benefit based on information in the FBI criminal history record until the applicant has been afforded a reasonable time to correct or complete the record or has declined to do so.
- Officials must use the criminal history record for authorized purposes only and cannot retain or disseminate it in violation of federal statute, regulation or executive order, or rule, procedure or standard established by the National Crime Prevention and Privacy Council.<sup>3</sup>

The FBI has no objection to officials providing a copy of the applicant's FBI criminal history record to the applicant for review and possible challenge when the record was obtained based on positive fingerprint identification. If agency policy permits, this courtesy will save the applicant the time and additional FBI fee to obtain the applicant's record directly from the FBI by following the procedures found at 28 CFR 16.30 through 16.34. It will also allow the officials to make a more timely determination of the applicant's suitability.

Each agency should establish and document the process/procedures it utilizes for how/when it gives the applicant the FBI Privacy Act Statement, the 28 CFR 50.12 notice, and the opportunity to correct the applicant's record. Such documentation will assist State and/or FBI auditors during periodic compliance reviews on use of FBI criminal history records for noncriminal justice purposes.

If you need additional information or assistance, contact:

---

<sup>1</sup> Written notification includes electronic notification, but excludes oral notification.

<sup>2</sup> See <https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/compact-council/privacy-act-statement>

<sup>3</sup> See 5 U.S.C. 552a(b); 28 U.S.C. 534(b); 34 U.S.C. § 40316 (formerly cited as 42 U.S.C. § 14616), Article IV(c); 28 CFR 20.21(c), 20.33(d), 50.12(b) and 906.2(d).

<p><b>Connecticut Records:</b>  <b>Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection</b>  <b>State Police Bureau of Identification (SPBI)</b>  <b>1111 Country Club Road</b>  <b>Middletown, CT 06457</b>  <b>860-685-8480</b></p>	<p><b>Out-of-State Records:</b>  <b>Agency of Record</b>  <b>OR</b>  <b>FBI CJIS Division-Summary Request</b>  <b>1000 Custer Hollow Road</b>  <b>Clarksburg, West Virginia 26306</b></p>
---	---

## Noncriminal Justice Applicant’s Privacy Rights

As an applicant who is the subject of a national fingerprint-based criminal history record check for a noncriminal justice purpose (such as an application for a job or license, an immigration or naturalization matter, security clearance, or adoption), you have certain rights which are discussed below. All notices must be provided to you in writing.<sup>4</sup> These obligations are pursuant to the Privacy Act of 1974, Title 5, United States Code (U.S.C.) Section 552a, and Title 28 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), 50.12, among other authorities.

- You must be provided an adequate written FBI Privacy Act Statement (dated 2013 or later) when you submit your fingerprints and associated person information. This Privacy Act Statement must explain the authority for collecting your fingerprints and associated information and whether your fingerprints and associated information will be searched, shared, or retained.<sup>5</sup>
- You must be advised in writing of the procedures for obtaining a change, correction, or updating of your criminal history record as set forth at 28 CFR 16.34.
- You must be provided the opportunity to complete or challenge the accuracy of the information in your FBI criminal history record (if you have such a record).
- If you have a criminal history record, you should be afforded a reasonable amount of time to correct or complete the record (or decline to do so) before the officials deny you the employment, license, or other benefit based on information in the FBI criminal history record.
- If agency policy permits, the officials may provide you with a copy of your FBI criminal history record for review and possible challenge. If agency policy does not permit it to provide you a copy of the record, you may obtain a copy of the record by submitting fingerprints and a fee to the FBI. Information regarding this process may be obtained at <http://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/identity-history-summary-checks> and <https://www.edo.cjis.gov>.
- If you decide to challenge the accuracy or completeness of your FBI criminal history record, you should send your challenge to the agency that contributed the questioned information to the FBI. Alternatively, you may send your challenge directly to the FBI by submitting a request via <https://www.edo.cjis.gov>. The FBI will then forward your challenge to the agency that contributed the questioned information and request the agency to verify or correct the challenged entry. Upon receipt of an official communication from that agency, the FBI will make any necessary changes/corrections to your record in accordance with the information supplied by that agency. (See 28 CFR 16.30 through 16.34.)
- You have the right to expect that officials receiving the results of the criminal history record check will use it only for authorized purposes and will not retain or disseminate it in violation of

<sup>4</sup> Written notification includes electronic notification, but excludes oral notification.

<sup>5</sup> <https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/compact-council/privacy-act-statement>

federal statute, regulation or executive order, or rule, procedure or standard established by the National Crime Prevention and Privacy Compact Council.<sup>6</sup>

- If you need additional information or assistance, please contact:

<b>Connecticut Records:</b> <b>Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection</b> <b>State Police Bureau of Identification (SPBI)</b> <b>1111 Country Club Road</b> <b>Middletown, CT 06457</b> <b>860-685-8480</b>	<b>Out-of-State Records:</b> <b>Agency of Record</b> <b>OR</b> <b>FBI CJIS Division-Summary Request</b> <b>1000 Custer Hollow Road</b> <b>Clarksburg, West Virginia 26306</b>
--	--

---

<sup>6</sup> See 5 U.S.C. 552a(b); 28 U.S.C. 534(b); 34 U.S.C. § 40316 (formerly cited as 42 U.S.C. § 14616), Article IV(c); 28 CFR 20.21(c), 20.33(d) and 906.2(d).

Federal Bureau of Investigation  
Privacy Act Statement

**This privacy act statement is located on the back of the FD-258 fingerprint card.**

**Authority:** The FBI's acquisition, preservation, and exchange of fingerprints and associated information is generally authorized under 28 U.S.C. 534. Depending on the nature of your application, supplemental authorities include Federal statutes, State statutes pursuant to Pub. L. 92-544, Presidential Executive Orders, and federal regulations. Providing your fingerprints and associated information is voluntary; however, failure to do so may affect completion or approval of your application.

**Principal Purpose:** Certain determinations, such as employment, licensing, and security clearances, may be predicated on fingerprint-based background checks. Your fingerprints and associated information/biometrics may be provided to the employing, investigating, or otherwise responsible agency, and/or the FBI for the purpose of comparing your fingerprints to other fingerprints in the FBI's Next Generation Identification (NGI) system or its successor systems (including civil, criminal, and latent fingerprint repositories) or other available records of the employing, investigating, or otherwise responsible agency. The FBI may retain your fingerprints and associated information/biometrics in NGI after the completion of this application and, while retained, your fingerprints may continue to be compared against other fingerprints submitted to or retained by NGI.

**Routine Uses:** During the processing of this application and for as long thereafter as your fingerprints and associated information/biometrics are retained in NGI, your information may be disclosed pursuant to your consent, and may be disclosed without your consent as permitted by the Privacy Act of 1974 and all applicable Routine Uses as may be published at any time in the Federal Register, including the Routine Uses for the NGI system and the FBI's Blanket Routine Uses. Routine uses include, but are not limited to, disclosures to: employing, governmental or authorized non-governmental agencies responsible for employment, contracting licensing, security clearances, and other suitability determinations; local, state, tribal, or federal law enforcement agencies; criminal justice agencies; and agencies responsible for national security or public safety.

As of 3/30/2018